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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

1.

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income) , consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph below, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2019, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and

consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Holding Company has received share application money during the earlier years post the issuance of
the Unlisted Public Companies (Preferential Allotment) Amendment Rules, 2011, against which the
Holding Company has neither allotted shares nor refunded the application money. During the year ended
31 March 2014, the Holding Company had accrued interest on the share application money in accordance
with the requirements of the said Rules. However, the Holding Company was not in compliance with
maintenance of a separate bank account for such share application money and that the same was being
utilized for general corporate purposes, which was not in accordance with the Rules. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, the same has been converted into inter corporate deposits based on legal advice
obtained by the Holding Company. The impact, if any, of such non compliances cannot be ascertained.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Awditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 32 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes in detail
that the Subsidiary Company had given certain inter corporate deposits for which the balance as at 31
March 2015 was Rs. 2,391.59 millions. The agreements with the said parties were expired and the amount
is due for the repayment by them on demand. Due to uncertainty on collection of these balances, the
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management has created provision against the same in the earlier years and also commenced the litigation
proceedings for recovery of these balances in the earlier year. During the previous year, as a result of
litigation proceedings, the arbitrator has awarded the Subsidiary Company Rs. 1,712.40 millions. Out of
the amount awarded, during the previous year, the Subsidiary Company has received Rs. 43.40 million
and accordingly provision has been written back. Further, for remaining balance of Rs. 679.19 millions
the litigation proceedings were dismissed against the Subsidiary Company. The matter is now pending

with the Calcutta High Court.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Jjudgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report,

Description of Key Audit Matter

Accounting of compulsory convertible debentures - See note 11 and 33 to the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit —r
During the year, the Holding Company has issued | Our audit procedures to assess the accounting of
12%  compulsorily  convertible debentures the CCDs included the following:

("CCDs") to BSREP India Office Holdings 111
Pte Ltd for a principal amount of INR 10,100 | ¢ Obtained understanding of the contractual terms
million. These CCDs shall be converted into of the CCD agreement.

shares of the Holding Company at higher of Fair
market value of equity shares at the time of | o Obtained accounting analysis of CCDs from the
issuance or fair market value of equity shares at management and reviewed the same in light of
the time of conversion. appropriate accounting guidance.

_ } ) ) * Performed audit procedures on valuation inputs
We identified assessing the accounting of CCDs and accounting entries of the transaction.

as a key audit matter because the accounting of
such financial instruments s complex and |4 e involved our internal valuation specialists in

involves judgement due to contractual terms and carrying out these procedures.
assumptions used in determining accounting
thereof. * Assessing the appropriateness of the disclosures

in the consolidated Ind AS financial statement
in respect of the financial instruments.
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Revenue recognition - See note 17 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue includes operating lease
rentals and maintenance services.

We identified recognition of revenue a key audit
matter because contractual agreements with
tenants  involves accounting  judgements,
including but not limited to lease term evaluation
and estimation relating to income from
maintenance services.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from operating lease rentals and
maintenance services included the following:

Obtaining an understanding of the systems,
processes and controls implemented by
management for recording and calculating
revenue and the associated contract assets,
unearned and deferred revenue balances.

On selected samples of contracts, we tested that
the revenue recognized is in accordance with the
accounting standard by:
Obtained understanding of the contractual
terms of the agreements with tenant and
reviewed the same in light of appropriate
accounting guidance.

Evaluating the identification of performance
obligation.

Evaluated the management analysis relating to
implementation of the new revenue accounting
standard (Ind AS 115) on revenue streams by
selecting samples for the existing contracts
with customers and considered revenue
recognition policy in the current period in
respect of those revenue streams;

Performed test of details including analytics to
determine  reasonableness  of  revenue
recognition.

Impairment assessment of Investment Properties - See note 4 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial

Statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As set out in Note 4, the Group holds Investment
Properties of INR  18,827.14  million.
Management annually reviews presence of any
indicators of impairment in respect of Investment
Properties as at 31 March.

We identified assessing impairment investment
properties as a key audit matter because these
properties are significant to the Group’s total
assets and involves significant judgement and
estimation.

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
investment properties included the following:

Obtaining  and  reviewing  management
assessment whether there were any indicators of
impairment of investment properties as at 31
March 2019.

Obtaining valuation reports prepared by the
external property valuer engaged by the Group
and performed audit procedures thereon
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3.

including but not limited to tick and tie, critical
evaluation of assumptions used such as growth
forecast, discount rate etc.

e Weinvolved our internal valuation specialists in
carrying out these procedures.

o Assessing the appropriateness of the disclosures
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statement in
respect  of the valuation of Investment
Properties.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the holding Company’s board report, but
does not include the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on
the work done, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Act
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company. and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,

as aforesaid.
In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, the respective management and Board of

Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company
0 continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
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going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group (company and subsidiary) to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, of which we are the independent auditors. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities.
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We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity
included in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

8. Other Matters

We draw attention to note 33 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements which describes in detail
the acquisition of Subsidiary Company by the Holding Company. The acquisition being a common control
business combination, the comparative information have been prepared to record the acquisition from 1
April 2017 in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103, Business Combination. Accordingly the figures
of subsidiary company has been included in the previous period presented in the Consolidated Ind AS

Financial Statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

9. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind

AS Financial Statements.

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.

c¢) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other

comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated

statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
aintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
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d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph

above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
Subsidiary Company as on 31 March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the respective
companies, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on
31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2019 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 28 to the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2019,

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

The disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year

ended 31 March 2019.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

The Holding and Subsidiary Company are the private limited Companies and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of section 197 (16) of the Act are not applicable to the

Group.
For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248 W/W-100022
Pravin Tulsyan \2’/
Place: Gurugram, Haryana Partner
Date: 30 May 2019 Membership No. 108044
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (9 (A) () under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and such company incorporated in India under the
Companies Act, 2013 which is its subsidiary company, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such company incorporated in India which is its subsidiary
company have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,

2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
aydit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining



Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited

(A amaanes are in INR million unless otherwise stated)

d Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

CAsat

Particulars Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Non-eurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 41.94 36.49
Invesument property 4 18.827.13 17,133.18
Financial assets
Loans 5. 164.28 160.12
Other linancial 532 371.01 151.80
Income tax assels (net) 4 855.04 144,062
Other non-current assets ¥
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Financiul assets
Trade rectivables 8.1 197.51 111.82
Cash and cash equivalents 8.2 955.95 432.86
Loans 8.3 - 4,668.75
Other financial assets 8.4 161.47 303.25
Other current 15 9 S . 68A9
Total current assets 138342
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10
Other equity
Total equity attributable Lo equity sharcholders of the company
Non controlling interest B
Total equity =
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 45,025.33 18.021.00
Other finane 1.1 1.337.41 207.26
Deferred 1ax liabihities (net) 12 494,88 150.24
Other non-current liabilities 3 73.62 72001
Long werm provisions 13.1 L bao e
Total non-current liabilities 4693164 __18,510.61
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
Iradle payables 14
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.60 .
Total outstanding dues ol creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 452.23 391.23
Contractual liability 33 * 30.500.00
Other linancial liabilities 15 236585 3.094.42
Other current liabilities 10 169.67 13:4.98
Short term provisions 16.1 B R e
Total current liabilities 2,990.36 C34.120.63
Total liabilities _52,631.24
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 23,846.89
2

Signilicant accounting policies

The accompanying notes from note 110 38 form an integral part ol these consolidated Ind AS financial statenents,

As per our report of even date attached

Feor BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accomntenis
cgistration No

TOI248W/W- 100022

Parmer
Membership No: 108044

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2019

For and on behall ol the Board of Directors ol
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited

g i,

Subrata Ghosh Alok Aggarwal
N No. 00009964

Menaging Director

1IN No. 0008360730
Place: Gurugram
Dater 30 May 2019

ol
Neeraj Kapoor
Ceompany secrefary
Membership No: A15104
Place: Gurugram

0 May 2019

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2019
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(Al amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)

_Consolidated Ind AS statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

Fur-l-l;u _Vl;llr ended

For the year ended

Particulars bt 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Income
Revenue lrom operations 17 6,043.29 5.618.40
Other income 18 920 612,59
Total income 6,522,449 .
Expenses
Employee benelit expenses 19 1.53 =
Finance costs 20 2,442,902 1.563.85
Depreciation expenses 21 534.08 516.30
Other expenses 22 o 2.380:49 2,142.70
Total expenses. - 5,367.82 4,222.85
Profit before tax 1,154.67 2,008.14
Tax expense:
Current lax
~for current year 12 398.19 441.69
~for curlier years 12 (14.99) 36.20
Deferred tax 12 39y
Profit for the year 1,669.36
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 0.01 -
- Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (rounded ofl) __(0.00) -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax B 0.01 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 53133 1,669.36
Profit is attributable to:
Owners ol the Company 531.23 1,669.25
Non- controlling interest e 0.09 _— 0.11
531.32 1,669.36
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners ol the Company 0.01 -
Non- controlling interest - -
o 0.01 .
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 531.24 1,669.25
Non- controlling interest 0.09 0.11
531.33 1,669.36
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of equity share INR 10 27
(previous year INR 10) each)
Basic (in INR) 7,805.02 28.126.06
7,805.02 28,126.06

Diluted (in INR)

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes from note | to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS linancial statements.

As per our report ol even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanty
Ejrm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

ulsyan

Placet Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2019

for and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Priv

Subrata Ghosh
Managing Direcior
DIN No. 0008360730

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2019

Chief financied officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2019

ate Limited

WAL

Alok Aggarwal
Director
DIN No. 00009964

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2019

Neeraj Kapoor
Company secrekary
Membership No: A45164
Place: Gurugram

Date: 30 May 2019




Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated Ind AS statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities :

Profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation expense

Gain on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on fixed deposit with banks
Interest on income tax refund

Deferred income amortization

Interest income on inter corporate deposits
Liabilities no longer required written back
Credit impaired

Provision for doubtlul debts

Fixed assets written of

Provision for employee benefits

Finance cost

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustments :

Decrease/ (Increase) in other current and non current assets

(Increase) Decrease in current and non current financial assets - loans
Decrease/ (Increase) in current and non current financial assets -other
(Increasc)/ Decrease in current financial asscts- trade receivables

Inerease/ (Decrease) in current financial liabilities - trade payables
Increase in current and non current financial liabilitics - others

Increase/ (Deereasce) in other current and non current liabilitics / provisions
Cash flows generated from operating activities

Income tax paid, net of refund and interest thercon
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities :
Acquisition of investment property

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary (refer foot note 4)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Interest received on inter corporate deposits
Fixed deposits matured**

Fixed deposits made**

Interest received on fixed deposits with banks
Inter corporate deposits given

Inter corporate deposits given, received back
Net cash flow (used in) investing activitics (B)

Cash flow from financing activities :

Finance cost paid

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Proceeds from non convertible bonds

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds Irom short-term borrowings

Repayment of short-term borrowings

Payment for dividend

Payment for dividend distribution tax

Net cash flow generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C)

Net inerease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A-+B+C)

1,154.67 2,008.14
$34.08 516.30
(47.00) ;
(19.98) (27.62)
(23.72) (23.81)
(83.48) (67.00)

(349.70) (459.12)
(31.15) (87.71)

2.04 8.64
18.35 2
0.03 2
0.41 3
2.442.72 1,563.85
3,597.27 3,431.67
9.75 (1.72)
(4.16) 22.65
121.66 (174.50)
(104.77) 10,77
75.30 (51.50)
64.86 148.10
120.53 (720.82)

3,880.44 2,664.65

(365.40) (442.35)

3,515.04 2,222.30

(1,968.36) (504.33)
(20,400.00) =
(13.54) (5.20)
1,095.25 460.79
64.51 2.64
(268.06) (43.90)
16.16 27.35
(80.00) (880.00)
4,003.20 874.87
(17,550.84) (67.58)
(2,043,96) (1,781.05)
15,116.39 2,304.10
21,000.00 s
(19,513.54) (713.66)
1,210.00 1,750.00
(1.210.00) (1,750.00)
’ (2,695.74)
. (124.66)
14,558.89 (3,011.01)
523.09 (856.59)
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Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated Ind AS statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
’ 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 8.2) 432.86 1,289.45
Bank balance
-in current account 122.86 23945
- in deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 310.00 1,050.00
432.86 1,289.45
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 8.2) 955.95 432.86
Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Balances with banks
~in current account 95.96 122,86
- in deposit account (with original maturity of' 3 months or less) 859.99 310.00
955.95 432.86

** Represents fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months.
1. The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out on Indian Accounting Standard -7 on "Statement on Cash

Flows "

2. Refer note 22(b) for Corporate Social Responsibility expense.

3. Refer note 11 (d) for changes in liabilitics arising from financing activitics.

4. During the year, the Company has issued Compulsorily Convertible Debentures to a related party as a consideration for purchase of equity investiment in a

subsidiary. Refer note 33,
Signilicant accounting policies (refer note 2)
The accompanying notes from note 1 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Lor and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

For BS R & Co. LLP
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
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amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)

idated Ind AS statement of change
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Equity share capital

cquity for the year ended 31 March 2019
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s premium is used to record the premium received on

“Debenture redemption reserve created on non convertible bonds is
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Significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

» accompanying notes from note 1 10 38 form an integral part of these consolidated Ind AS financia
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Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited

(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwis

stated)

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

i)

b)

Corporate Information
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited ("the Parent Company” or "Company") is in the business of developing commercial real estate

property in India. It is primarily involved in developing and leasing of investment property in I'T/TeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ). The Company is
developing a project in New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata. The projeet has been notified as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) by the Government of India.

‘The Company has been converted into private company on 21 October 2015 and got its name changed from Unitech Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited to
¢ Limited on 27 January 2016,

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Privi

") is m the business of developing commercial real estate property in India. [t is
I'eS Special Economic Zone (SEZ). The Company is co - developing a project in

Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited ("Subsidi
primarily involved in developing and leasing of investment property in 171
seetor 21, Dundahera Gurugram. The project has been notified as a Special Economic Zone (SEZ) by the Government of India,

The Group ("Parent Company and its Subsidiary”) is primarily engaged in the business of developing commercial real estate property in India. It is
primarily involved in developing and leasing of investment property in IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ), The Group is developing a praject in New
Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata and co - developing a project in sector 21, Dundahera Gurugram. The project has been notified as Special Economic Zone (SEZ)

by the Government of India,

The Parent Company has issued bonds during the year on 8 January 2019 listed in Bombay Stock Exchange on 9 January 2019. The registered office of the
Group w.e.f 9 April 2019 is ¥-83, Profit Centre, Gate No. |, Mahavir Nagar, Near Pizaa Hut, Kandivali (W), Mumbai-400067 (crstwhile 1102, 11th floor,
Tower B, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Road, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013),

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of Compliance

These are the first set of consolidated Ind AS Financial statements (“linancial statements™) that have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act™) and
other relevant provisions of the Act. All the amounts included in the consolidated financial statements are reported in million of Indian Rupees and are
rounded to the nearest million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

The consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 May 2019,

(ii) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention en accrual basis, unless otherwisc stated.

(iti) Changes in Signilicant Aceounting Policies
The Group has initially applied Ind AS 115 from T April 2018. A number of other new standards and amendments are also cffective from 1 April 2018 but

they do not have a material effeet on the consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers

Effective 1 April 2018, the Group has applicd Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 using the
cumulative effeet method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial application (i.e.1 April 2018),

The Group has revenues primarily from the operating lease rentals and maintainence services. Lease rentul revenue is scoped out under para 5(a) of the Ind
1m of revenue which majorly includes maintenance services and utility recovery are non-lease components within a lease arrangement

AS 115, For other str
Ind AS 115, These services recognised over the period using pereentage-of-completion method (*POC method’) of accounting with

and arc covered under
contract costs meurred and determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation.

The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative information in the
statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative information continues to be reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. Refer note 2(h)(8) -
Significant accounting policies — Revenue recognition in the financial statement of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018, for the revenue recognition

policy as per Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11.
The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements ol the Group is insignificant.

A number of other new standards and amendments are also effective from 1 April 2018 but they do not have a material impact on consolidated Ind AS

financial statements

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention, except for certain linancial assets and financial
liabilitics which have been measured at amortised cost. Refer note 2(h)(4) for accounting policy regarding consolidated financial instruments.

Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Group is the Indian rupee. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (in million), Accordingly
consolidated financial information presented in Indian Rupees in million unless otherwise stated. Also refer note 2(h)(10) for accounting policy in respect

of accounting for foreign currency lransactions.




Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)
Noles to the consolidated Ind AS finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

)

c)

Significant accounting judgments, ¢ stimates and assumptions
atements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
s, liabilitics, income and expenses and the consolidated disclosures including

The preparation of consolidated financial st
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of as!
those of contingent Jiabilitics ifany. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates -ccopnised pruspuclivuly.
Assumptions and estimation uneertainities

(i) measurement of useful life, residual values
{ property, plant and equipment and investment property (refer note 21

and impairment of property, plant and cquipment and investment property (refer note 2(h(L)

(i) recoverable amount/value in use 0
cts (refer nole 2 (i)
ions and contingencics, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitiude of

(iii) impairment of financial as
(iv) recognition and measurement of provis
note 28)

(v) classification of lease term (refer note 1

(viy fair value recognition and measurement (refer note 24)

(vii) valuation of compound financial instrument and other financial instrument (refer note 2h)(4)

an outflow of resources (refer

(viii) recognition and estimation of lax expense including deferred tax (refer note 12)

(ix) measurement of defined benefit obligations : key actuarial assumptions (refer note 26)

Measurement of fair values
The Group accounting policics und disclosures require the measurement of fair valucs, for both financial and non-financial
nework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for oversceing all
Juding Level 3 fair values, and reports dircetly to the Chief Financial Officer.

cets and liabilities. The Group

has an established control fr
significant fair value measurements, inc
They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. 1f third party information is uscd Lo measure fair values then the finance
Leam asscsses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind A8, including the
Jevel in the fair value hicrarchy in which such valuations should be classificd.

‘air values are categorised into different

When measuring the fair value of an assct or & Jiability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. I

levels in a fair value hicrarchy bascd on the inputs used in Ihe valuation techniques as follows:
« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities.
« Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 {hat are obscrvable for the asset or liability, cither direetly (i.c. as prices) or indircetly (i-c.

derived from prices).
« Level 3: inputs for the

asset or liability that are not based on obscrvable market data (uuuhscrvab!c inputs).

of an assct or 4 liability fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is

I the inputs used Lo measure the fair value
menl.

categorised in its entirety in the same level af the fair value hierarchy as the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the enlire Measure!

Current and non-curr 1 classification

ots and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current clas ication.

The Group presents
An assct is classilied as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:
- itis expeeted to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group's normal operating cyele.

_itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
- itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

~ it is cash or cash cquivalent unless it is restricted from peing exchanged or used to settle 2 liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classificd as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:
_ it is expected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cyele;
“itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:
[t is due 1o be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
_ the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer seitlement
could, at the eption of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issuc of cquily instruments do not affect its classific

of the liability for at least 12 months afler the reporting datc. Terms of a liability that
ation.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilitics respectively. All other assets/ liabilitics are classificd as non-

current, Deferred tax asscls and liabil

ificd s non-current asscts and liabilitics.

Operating cyele
Based on the nature of the operations and the time between {he acquisition of assets for p
Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current ¢l

rocessing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
fication of asscts and liabilitics.
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Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(Al amounts are m INR million unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

g

h)

a)

b)

Principles of consolidation of subsidiary
1) Subsidiary is entity over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed Lo, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to alfeet those returns through its power to dircet the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary arce fully

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceas
The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items ol assets
expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
suction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiary have been changed where

ilities, equity, income and

climinated unless the tra
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiary are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated stutement

ol changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

ii) Non-controlling interests (NCI):
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s cquity interest in a

subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
iii) Loss of control:
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the asscts and liabilities of the subs y, and any related NCI and other components of
equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss.

Busmess combinations - common control transactions
Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the ultimate holding company are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as

follows:

1) The assets and liabilitics of the combining entities arc reflected at their carrying amounts.

ii) No adjustments arc made to reflect fair values, or recognize any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments arc made only to harmonize accounting policics.
iii) The financial information in the financial statements in respeet of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred from the
beginning of the preceding period in the finaneial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

iv) The difference, if any, between the purchase consideration in the form of cash/other assets and the amount of net asscts of the transleror is transferred to
deficit on consolidation adjustment account. The amount of deficit on consolidation adjustment account is adjusted to the extent of reserves available with

at | April 2017,

the Subsidiary Company a

Significant accounting policies

Investment property and property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Investment properties consists of commercial properties which are primarily held to carn rental income and commercial developments that are being

constructed or developed for future use as commercial propertics,

sured at cost. Subsequent to the initial measurement, investment property and

Investment property and property, plant and equipment are initially me;
property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

The cost of commercial development propertics includes direct development cost, realty taxes and borrowing cost dircetly attributable to the development,
The Group has outsourced projeet management to the third party, any expense relation to projeet management is capitalised as per the terms of the

agreement with the third party on accrual basis.

price, including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes, and any

Cost of an item of property, plant and cquipment comprises the purch,
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the

purchasce price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and cquipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components)
of praperty, plant and cquipment. Likewise, on initial recognition expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are required to be
identificd as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure. Also refer note 2(h)(4)(vii) for accounting
policy with respeet to borrowing cost capitalisation.

Effective 1 April 2015, the Group had transitioned to Ind AS and the transition was carried out in accordance of Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards" and for permitted exemption opted to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment property and property, plant and
cquipment and intangible assets as recagnised in the financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP and use the same as deemed cost in the

consolidated financial statement as at the transition date.
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Candor Kolkata One H
(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwisc stated)
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Subsequent expenditiure aid disposal

Subscquent expenditure is capitalised to the investment property and property, plant and equipment’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
cconomic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of a investment property and property, plant and equipment is replaced, the carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised.

Any gain or loss from disposal of a investment property and property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation
Investment property and property, plant and cquipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, The useful life has

been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management's expert.

Management's assessment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the
5, past history of replacement and maintenance support.

ts, the operating conditions of the ass

The asset’s residual values and uscful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of cach reporting period.

The uselul lives of the investment property and property, plant and equipment is tabulated as below:

Particulars Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 60

Plant and Machinery 5-15
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Electricity fittings 10

Diesel Genset 15

Air conditioner 5-15
Office Equipment 5
Computer 3-6

ion on additions (disposals) is provided on pro-rata basis i.c from (upte) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of1).

Depre
Leaschold improvements are depreciated over primary period of lease or the useful life of the asset, whichever is lower.

2)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment and investment property
The carrying amounts of asscts arc reviewed at cach reporting date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An
impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) exeeeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
asset.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assct over its remaining useful life,

3)  Employee benefits

Employee benefits include gratuity and compensated absences.

Post Employment Benefits

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund is determined using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method, with actuarial valuations being carried

out at cach bulance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they oceur. Past service
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period

cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is
until the benefits become vested.

Under the PUC method a projected accrued benefit is caleulated at the beginning of the period and again at the end of the period for cach benelit that will
accruc for al ve members of the plan. The projected acerued benefit is based on the plan acerual formula and service as at the beginning and end of the
period, but using member's final compensation, projected to the age at which the employee is assumed to leave active service. The plan liability is the

actuarial present value of the projected acerued benefits as on the date of valuation,

Short-term employee henefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during
the year when the employees render the service. These benelits include performance incentive and compensaled absences which are expected to oceur

within twelve months afer the end of the period in which the employce renders the related service.

accounted as under :

The cost of short-term compensated absences

(a) in case ol accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated absences: and

(b) in casc of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences oceur.




Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(Al amounts are m INR million unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Other fong-term employee henefity
cd absences. Cost of long-term benefit by way of

The employees ol the Group are entitled to long term benefit by way of accumulating compens:

accumulating compensated absences arising during the tenure of the service is caleulated taking into account the pattern of availment of leave,

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months alter the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service
ial valuations as at the balance sheet date by an independent

are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benelit ubligation based on actus
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial linbility or cquity instrument of another entity.

(1) Financial Asscts - Recognition
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

All financial assets are recognised initially o
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classtfication and subsequent measirenent

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial asscts are classificd in four categorics:

= Debt instrumenis at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asscts for collecting contractual cas
b) Contractual terms of the asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount

h flows, and

outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is ealeulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

* Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A 'debt instrument’ is elassified as at the FVOCL if both of the following criteria are n
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FYOCI eategory are measured initially as well as at cach reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements arc
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment loss als reign
exchange gain or loss in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gaing or losses previously recognised in OCH is reclassified
from the equity to statement of profitand loss. Interest carned while holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

= Debt instruments at fair valuc through profit or loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as al amortised cost or as

IFVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise imeets amortized cost or FVYOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as *accounting mismateh'), The Group
has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in statement of profit or loss.

+ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all

other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevecable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The
Group makes such clection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

I the Group decides to classify an cquity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, arc recognized in the
OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sule of investment. However, the Group may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within cquity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in statement of profit and loss.

(i1) Financial Asscts -~ Derccognition .
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.c., removed from

the Group's balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Group has transferred its rights to reecive cash flows [rom the asscl or has
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
or (b) the Group has neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assct.

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
sferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
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(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(1ii) Impairment of financial asscts
allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial asscts which are not fair valued through profit or loss
ncinl assets with

The Group recognizes loss
Loss allowance for trade r
contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant iner
in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss

ivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all fin

C

allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

(1v) Financial liabilitics — Recognition & Subsequent measurement
The Group's financial Labilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable transaction costs. Subscquent to initial measurement, these are

amortised cost using the effeetive interest rate ('EIR') method .

measured o
The Group's financial liabilitics include trade and other payables, loans, non-convertible bonds, compulsory convertible debentures and borrowings

including bank overdralts.

The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

+ Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial habilities at [air value through statement of profit or loss include financial liabilitics held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
nancial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose

mitial recognition as at fair value through statement of profit or lo
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
umenlts in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they arc

designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

v such at the initial date of

atement of profit or loss are designated «
gnated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses altributable to changes in own

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities de
credit risk arc recognized in OCL These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer
the cumulative gains or losses within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

liabilities at amortised cost (Loans, compulsoerily convertible debentures and non-convertible bonds)

= Financi
Alter initial recognition, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and non-convertible bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective
interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derccognised as well as through the EIR
amortisalion process.

al part of the EIR. The EIR

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inte;

amortisation is included as linance costs in statement of profit and loss.

(v) Financial liabilitics - Derecognition

A financial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial lability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or medilication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilitics assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other gains/(losses). The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised

in statement of profit and loss.

(vi) Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments issued by the parent company comprise convertible debentures denominated in Indian Rupees that can be converted to

ordinary shares at the option of the holder and issuer, when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of compound linancial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole
and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equily components in proportion to

their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortiscd cost using the EIR method. The
ument is not remeasured.

cquity component of a compound financial in

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in statement of profit and loss. On conversion at maturity and carly conversion, the financial liability is

reclassificd to equity and no gains or losses are recognised.

(vii) Income/loss recognition

= Interest income §

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
t 1o the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While caleulating the

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial as
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,

prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected eredit losses.

= Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR) and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the

extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cosl.




Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Borrowing costs associated with direct expenditures on properties under development or redevelopment or property, plant and equipment are 5Ipil-’|!i:’,\!d‘
The amount of borrowing costs capitalized is determined first by borrowings specific to a property where relevant, and then by a weighted average cost of
borrowings to cligible expenditures after adjusting for borrowings associated with other specific developments. Where borrowings are associated with
specific developments, the amount capitalized is the gross borrowing costs incurred less any incidental investment income. Borrowing costs are capitalized
from the commencement of the development until the date of practical completion, Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the
statement of profit and Joss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

sh payments or receipts over the expeeted life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When caleulating the clTeetive interest
rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,

call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

(viii) Embedded derivatives

s with embedded derivatives are

Derivatives embedded in a host contraet that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not scparated. Financial a
considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

¢ nol separated. Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contrac
cconomic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured

at fair value through profit or loss. The group has scperated the derivative component of compulsorily convertible debentures issued during the year (refer

note 33) and measured at FVTPL.

5) Lease payments
In respeet of assets taken by the Group on operating leases, the total lease rentals are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over
is more representative of the time pattern of the benefit. [nitial dircet costs incurred specifically for an

the lease term unless another systematic basi
operating lease arce recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

6)  Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying

cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

7y Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past cvents whose existence will be confirmed by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also ariscs in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial

statements.,

8) Revenue recognition
Effective 1 April 2018, the Group has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when

revenue is to be recognised, Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts, The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 using the

cumulative effeet method.

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected from customers and remitted to government

authoritics such as Goods and services tax, service tax and applicable discounts service level eredits, price concessions and allowances. The computation of
ant judgment based on various factors including contractual terms, historical experienee,

these estimates using expected value method involves signifi
expense incurred cte.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue carmed over billings on contracts. Contract assels are classified as unbilled reccivables (only
act of inveicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash and only passage of time is required as per contractual terins. Contract
liabilitics are recogmised when there are billings in exeess of revenues. Contract liabilities relate to the advance received from customers and deferred

revenue against which revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is satisficd.

(1) Income from Operating Lease Rentals
Assets given by the Group under operating lease are included in investment property. Lease income from operating leases is recognised in the statement of
¢ term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time

profit and loss on a straight line basis over the non eancellable period of the lea
pattern in which benefit derived from the leased asscet is diminished. Costs, including depreciation, incurred in caming the lease income arc recognised as
s. Initial dircet costs incurred specifically for an operating lease are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are

expen
incurred.

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the
non-cancellable period of lease ternm exeept where the rentals are structured to merease in line with the expeeted general inflation.

(11)  Operations and maintenance income
Operations and maintenance income consists of revenue carned from the provision of daily maintenance, security and administration services, and is

charged to tenants based on the occupied lettable area of the properties. Income is recogniscd as per terms of contract entered into with tenants which is

recognised on a time proportion bas

For impact of Ind AS 115 effective | April 2018- Refer note 2(a)(iii)

9)  Property management fees
The Group have minimal number of employees and has outsourced the property management activities to third partics. Any expense in relation to property

management is charged to statement of profit and loss as per the terms of the agreement with the third party on accrual basis
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10)

11

12

13

14)

Accounting for Foreign currency (ransactions

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates (*the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
¢ generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised

direetly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current lax

Current tax comprises of the expecled tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of carlier years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, Current tax
assets and labilities are offset only when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, but they intend to settle
sets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilitics will be realised simultancously.

current tax liabilities and

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liab

bases/amounts used for taxation purposes,

tics for financial reporting purposes and tax

Minimum Alternative Tax (*MAT') under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the statement of profit and loss. The
s convineing evidence that the Group will

credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent ther
pay normal income tax during the peried for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for sct-ofT against the normal tax liability, MAT credit recognised
as un asset is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a trans:
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

tion that is not a business combination and,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
cnacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsct if there is a legally enforecable right to offset current tax
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entitics, but they intend

liabilities and assets
to settle current tax liabilitics and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultancously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credit available, to the extent that il is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised (and in case of MAT, during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT
credit is allowed to be carried forward), Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and arc reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
sct/liabilities are recognised in respect of timing differences that reverse within tax

that the related tax benefit will be realized, Further, no deferred tax
hoeliday period.

Segment reporting
Operating sepments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker,

Identification of segments:
In accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment information arc identificd on the basis of information
sources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Group

reviewed by the Group management to allocate re
that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of

the Group other components.

Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by the board of direetors which has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM),
1o make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which diserete financial information is available.

Earnings per share
Basic carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to cquity sharcholders by the weighted average number of

shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per share, the statement of profit and loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted

adjusted Tor the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

average number of shares outstanding during the period arc

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “statement of Cash Flows™, whereby prolit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax

is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activitics of the Group are segregated based on the available information.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
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4)

5

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 - Leases
Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases (Ind AS 17) and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
s for both lessees and lessors. [t introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A le
s right-of-us

presentation and disclosure of leas
recognises present value of the lease payment (discounted using incremental borrowing rate or interest rate implicit in the lease) &
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments and lease rent expense will be
scl and interest accrued on lease liability. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
s well. The new standard substantially carries forward the lessor accounting

replaced with the amortization of right-of usc-as
ces and will have consequential impact on cash flows categorics

les
requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Group will adopt Ind AS 116 cffeetive annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Therefore, the
cumulative cficet of adopting new standard will be recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained carnings at 1 April 2019, with no

restatement of comparative information.

The Group has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact on its financial statements but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The
quantitative impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable as at present,

Ind AS 12 Income faxes (amendments refating to tncome 1ax consequences of dividend and nncertamty over income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Group does not expect
any impact from this pronouncement. [t is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the entity pays a tax on dividend which is
effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authoritics on behalf of sharcholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues to be
charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance with Ind AS 12.

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
s, unused tax eredits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the entity

tax loss
has to use judgement, to determine whether cach tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together. The decision

should be based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the taxation authority
will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority
accepting the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend
upon the probability. The Group does not expect any significant impact of the amendment on its consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employce Benefits- plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current service cost and the net interest for the
period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify
the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The parent company does not expect this

amendment to have any significant impact on its consolidated financial statements,

Amendment to Ind AS 23, Borrewing Casts

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing
becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows penerally when caleulating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Since this just being a
imendments.

clarification, the Group docs not cxpeet any impact from this

Ind AS 109 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or,
depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments, The parent

company does not expect this amendment to have any impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2008

Non current financial assets - Loans

(Unseenred and considered good)

Secunly deposits 16428 16012
TS T 16012

Losans recenvables vonsidered good - Secued -
wans reccivables consulered goad - Unsecured 16428 1012
ant increase n Credit Risk S =

wits receivables which have sy
s receivables - credit impaired

52 Non current fnancial assets - Other
(Enseenred and comidered goods
Fined deposits with banks® 25208 a8 51
Iterest acerned bat st due o fixed deposits with banks 185
Lease et cqualisatzon R b
15180

rent asset since the smme are lien for long term pumose, Detatls are as follows -
it of Indi through Assistant Conmissioner of GST. West Bengal
n

pasits of INK 252,08 million (previous year INR 48 ST aillion) has heen considered as non
neludes INR 4533 muillion (previons year NI 43,39 million) lien against hank guatantec 10 the Pre.
ncludes INR 0.1 nuillion (previous year- Xl lien aginst bank graramiee 1 Assistant Compussioner of Goods
Tncludes INI TRR_12 million (revious year Nl lien agamnst Inferest service resorve account

Ireludes INRCS 12 million (previous year INR 481 million) given as bank guarsmee to President of India for Nouta. Special Eeotpntic Zone:

Aicludes INR Q.10 mullivn (previens year INR 0,10 nullin) given as guarantee for sales 1ax registration.
Includes INR (.21 oy en in favor of Haryana State Industrial & I

ncludes INR 13,06 million (previons year -INR Nil) gven against LC No. §5721.003 1901903 (issued n

vices Tax (€

structure Developntent Carporation Lid
favar of OTISH

6 Income tax axsels (nel)
Advance icome tax® 855,04 HA62
. #55.04 744,62
' 124066 EYTER

“iiot of provision for income tax

7 Other non-current assels

tinseenred and considered goody

Capital advances 2186

Prepaid expenses 230
o 26.16

&1 Current financial assels - trade receivables
Other trude receivables
Trade receivables considered pood - unseeured 197351 11182
Trade receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - unsecured 19,00 074
Less: Loss allowance _— (19.09) (0.74)
197,51 111.62

Refer note 11 in respevt of trade receivables given as security i respeet of secured borrowing taken from anks/others.

2 Current financial assets - Cash and cash cquivalents

Ralance with banks

In current secoun 05.96 122,86

I dleposit accomt (with original nutiity LU L R (AEH)
RIS

T onths or less) o

There are o repatriation restrictons with repard 1o cash and vash cquivalens as at the end of the reportime year and prior years
of secured borrowing taken from banks/nhers

Redornate 1 in respect of vash and vash equivalents given as securny in resp

Information persvant to G.S.R. J0K{ E) dated 30 March 2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Alfuirs
5 of specificd bank notes hield and transacied during 8 Noventher 2016 10 30 December 2016 has not been made in these fmancial siatements sinee the requirement does it pertain

The disclosures reganling det
to financial year ended 31 March 2019

83 Current financial assets - Louns

e secnred and constdered grod, unless atherwise stated)

To related parties®

Inter corporate depusits - 0230

Interest op inter corporate deposit T45.55

“To parties other than related parties

Advanees 1o vendors 0in 036

Iiter corporate deposits (refer note 12) 2,100,080 210000
24800 14819

Interes! on infer corprate deposit e
Less: Provision against ather advances

wahle
(2,348.55) (2.348.55)
- et 668.75

Loans receivables considered goml - Secured B
Loans receivables considered good - Unseeurcd - 466875
it increase in Credit Risk 23R 55 2.34K.55

Laans receivables which have s
Laans receivables - credit impaired
(234K.53)

‘Less: Luss allowance
“for trasaction with related parties (refer nole 29)

K4 Current financial assets - Other

it nseenved and consiclercd gond)
Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposis with banks 052 009
Unbilled revene 23IR08
Lcase rent equalisation - RTRES 65.08
16147 303.25
9 Other current assels
(Uscenred and eonsidercel gaod)
Balmce recoverable from govenmment awhontics 3219
Advarees 1o vendors 36.03
Prepard expenses 10.4%
_ I
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Naotes ta the consolidated Ind A

o SEEE S S ESs == Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2008
v Share capital
Authorised
2000000 (previous year - LAMMLNHY Equity shares of INR 10 cach 2000 000
Tssuedl, subseribied and puid un
58,510 (previous year S8.510 ) Fquity Shares of INR H cach. fully paid up 059
0.59

(#) Reconciliation of number of equily shares and aniaunts at the heginning and at the end af the reporting periad.

Particulars

Numhber of shares Amount in INR million

s a1 01 April 2007

Chamges during yoar emded 201718
Asat 3 March 2018

Changes duning year ended 2018 19
Asat 31 March 2014

s, preference and restrictions attached to equity shures
1 single eliss of equity shares, Avcordingly. all equity sharcs nak equally with roea sl and share in the g
quity shareholder una poll (ot on shon of hass) are in proportion to its share of iy
sets of the proup.

(h) Rig

The wroup b
from time to time, The voting nghts
£ cauity shares will he entitled w recenve the resid

s residial ass

(¢} Shares held by holdingfultimate holdi oup andfor their subsidiariesfssociates

Exquity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by

SIEP India Office Holdings V Pre. Lt {The Holding Company}
BSREP Moon C 1 L2, Cayman Islands
BSREP Moon € 2 L., Cayman Islands
BSREP Moon € 3 LE., Cayman Islands
RBSREP Moon C 4 L.P., Cayman Islands
BSHEP MoonC 5 L. Caynian Islands

SK,510

1 The equity shares are entitked to receive davidend as
lup cquity eapital of the group. On widing up of the group. the

As at 31 March 2019

BSREP Moon € 6 L. Caynan lslands

Equity shares of INR 10 cach fully paid up held by
BSREP India Office Holdings V Ple Ll (The Holding Company)

Moon C4 LI, Cayma

Moon € § LI, Cayman [slas
L. Cayman Islads

{d) Names of the sharcholders holding more than $% of class of shares
Equity shares of INR 10 cach fully paid up held hy
Asat 31 March 2018
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pre. Lud- The Holding Company
As a1 31 March 2019
BSREP Indin Gffice Holdings V Pre, Lub.- The Holding Company

{e) Shares reserved for isue under contract

India Office Holdings V Pre. Lid (refernote 113
AP hdia Office Holbings 11 Pre. L (refer nte 111

i wscenred eonyulsarily convertible debentures, issued o 1S
o unseensed conyilsorily convertible debentures, isued o B3

Numiber Amount in INR
58504 SRS.040
1 (]
1 1n
1 n
1 10
1 0
1 10
- SH510 SA5,100_
As at 31 March 2018
Numiher Amount in INR
58,504 585,040
10
1 0
1 10
1 10
1 10
! 1n
58,510 SRS,100
Numher Yo of shares
58.504 9999
SH.504 99,99
Number Amount in INR
As at 31 March 2019
1024 10,240.00
A1 10.100.00
As it 31 March 2018

| tsstcel o DSIED [ndia Office Holdings V Pe. Lid. (refer note 11)

15% unseeured conpulsorily convertible debentures,
cstcd to NSREP India Office Holdings 11 Pre. 11 (refer note 1)

12% wnseured compulsanly convertible debentures,

() As porsecords of the group, inhiding is register of sharchollers/ menibers. the ubove sharelulding represeris bogal awnerships of shures.

(g No shures hve beert oot withaun payment of cash ar by way of bans sliares during the period of five yuars mmeditchy precedig the Balance Sheet date.

1.024 10.240,00
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(Al amoungs are i INR pulhon unbess otherwise stated)

Notes o the Ind AS financial

for the year ended 31 March 20019

Particulars

Asut
3 March 2019

T asm
31 March 2018

~current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Secured
Term Joans from banks

Tew loan fom others

Nuonconvertible Bonds

Lessi- Current maturities of long term borowings (rel

note 15)

Unsecured loan

Laahility componcnt of compound fancial instrunsent (refer note (b below)
12% compulsonly convertible debentures o related parties (refer note 2% ad 37)

(a) Terms for sccured loan

14850 74
HLR2R 7Y

203078

I kS

(1288 88)

san

1802100

Nuture of Loan

Lender

i
INR million

Lease rent discounting
L PLRIC9.9% 400 5%) ,
(Term : 15 Year)

1DFC LT

The term loan is secured by way of clarge|
on hypothecation of receivables, movablel
assets, insurance policics. Jease areement,
bank aceounts, morgage on inmevahlel
properties meluding Jand and pledge o
99.9% of shore capitalisecuritics. of the
Company o fully  dilited  basis.
Additionally.  charge o recemables.
movable assets. insurance policies. ease
agreements f subsidiary company arl
pledge over 9999%  of shares of]
subidiary company held by the Company.

201920 ’
202021
202122 286031
14.850.74
02223 3.150.83
i 02324 370600
202425 450126

Prime fewding vate (PLR)

Note - The carrying value of asseis pledged against secured loans is : () Trade tecel

million and (¢) Investment property - INR 9. 103 89 million. This excludes (a) Prope

y. plat and cquipment - INR 23

ivables - INR 197.51 million, (h) Cash and cash cquivalents - INR 955.95 million (¢) Property. plant and equipment -INR 17.95
99 million mul (1) Davestsent property - INR 973511 million of subsidiary company.

As at 31 March 2019
Lender Seeurity Carrying Amountin | Terms of repayment (inchuling EIR adjustment)
I INR million _ Year Amaunt
201819
201920
The term luan is seeured by -
Vs g af movable  assets,  morgage  onl
L case re .
' O b s, pledge of shares,
Ierest 6 CPLIAMCLR[(9.05% (40 35%] HDEC LD fimmmorabie properies. pllge of share .
i1 and HDFC [charge on bank accounts and insurance Nil - -
Bank  |policics. escrow on receivables of the

Group, demand promisory sote in favous|
af the fender

Corporaie priuwe londing rate (CPLR) and Marginal cast of fands hased fending rates (MCLI

g value of assots pledged aainst sce

o Joans s ¢ (a) Trade rey

ables - INR Nil. (b) Cash and cash

&
As at 31 March =
Nature of Lonn Lender Security Carrying Amou; e 3
¥ puyment (ineluding EIR adjustient
INR millin Terms of repayment (inchuding 1j )
Year Amount
201819 128888
201920 1.622.79
202021 187553
i loan i< seeured by hypothecation
Lease rem discouming ol meabicas - il
Rkl G HDFC LTD | imamovahle propes 242559
sl (s PLRAMOLR[C- 19 05% (4 )0.35% v 242
H m,!,‘ ! ,IIFQHY).,, i and HDEC [ ch 10.256.16 :
T Hank prlicies. eserow on receivables of the M 10878
. denzind promisory note i favour S
af the lerder - L4205
2025 26 H643.28
202627 20218
2027.28 1513

Carpaorate prime lendimg rate (CPLIE) o Marginal cost of finnds based fending rates (CLRY

tc - The carryiny value of Fr
INK 3649 million and (d) Investiment property - INR 17.136.%3 million

1 assets pledged aganst seeured loans

(@) Trade receivables - INR 11182 pullion (b) Cash and cash equivalents -

INR 432 86 million {¢) Property. plant and eq
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Notes to the consolidated Ind AS finuncial statements the year ended 31 March 2019

T
31 March 2039

Particulars

Asat
31 Murch 2018

Na. af Debentures Date of issuance Rate of

Face Value
v Interest (per annum)

ih) Debenture! Bond halder

Haoldigs ¥ Pre Lit* 0767 90 15 May 15 15 00%

s V Pre Ll 71426 s 1500

India Office Holdugs 1 Pre Lul** 221,807 45,535 Jan 14 12,00

DU Inersitonal (Asta) Lid* =" 1,060 (KHY 15 Ydan 19 10.75%
Standard Chartered Bonk (Mauritus) Limited Debte** 1.000 (6K A 3 dan 1 10.75%
1000000 6,800 dan 1y 10.75%

Standard Chartered Bank Singapore Branch

tehenturcholder shall have the nght to convert debentures mto ¢ shares any e adler issue m 1
ting froms 01 Apnl 2015, however the Conypany has the discretion of paying the mierest at mlerim peri

*The Conguany @
payable annally, st

- Alse refer note 10 (c)

B dia Offee Hol

21807 40 cach o B

“* During the year. the Conpany has issued 45535 12% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures (*CCD") of INK
10,180 nllion. These CCD's are convertihle at the option of holder an date falling 20 years from the date of issuance of a

af ssuance or fair value an the date of conve er. These CCDs have o meoratorwm pesiod for interest 0l 31 Mareh 20
which any finaneial indebtedness avatled by the Conpany 1% unconditionally and irevocably discharged in full. The Conipany as of now b

Fand acerued interest the

on whichever is

d e
sapen rate of interest of 10,75

= Duritig the year, the Conypany bas alloted 21,000 INR denonumted senior rated lisied se
Bonds™). for cash. o private placenient basis, These bonds carries
al is sepayalle as bullet paynient on 30 December 2021

herematier referred o as the
the Bond Trust Doed and priss

ratie. The inerest on these unsecured compulsorily convertible del

ny time prior to that date The conversion price will be higher of fuir
er will he payable only after the date on

assunied first dlate of interest payment on 31 March 2025,

Compulsary Conversion
term

15 May-28

2 Jam 39
0-Dee-21
30-Dee- 21
30 Dee-21

wures (UCCD) s

es 1 Pie Lid aggregating to INR

aluc on the date

wable, non cotvertible honds of fce value of INIUTDO0000 cach, agpregating INR 21,000 million
o first 12 momthis and thercafter subject v anmal reset

s e the termms of

(€1 Seeured Non-Convertihle honds
As al 31 March 2019
9 Carrying Amountin | Ternis of repaynient EIR
Band halders (" Subscriher™ Securit —_—
ot e uf Iﬁ uheriber®) ! . INR million Year Amaunt
The ran convertible honds are secured by way of charge|
it on hypothecation of receivables, movable assets, rights, 01819
D International (Asia) Ltd. insurance policies, lease agreement. bank £
mortgage on immovable propertics inch
pledge of 99.9% of shate capital  securities of thel
. Company on fully diluted basis. Additonally, charge on|
Standard Chartered Bank (Mauritius) Linited receivahles, movable nssers, insurance policies. lease] 2019-20
aprecments, componate purntee of subsidairy company| 2082873
o T land pledge over 99.99% of shares of subsidairy
compuny held by the Company
2020.21
.RMTI
(d) Changes in labilities arising from fnancing activities
For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Opening Bulinee 10.357.89
nans received during the year (including 12% conpulsonly cos

T ilkon

ertible debemures to related partics INR 9.

A1 March 2018
17.782 &0

4,054.10

1.723.54) (2.461.60)
0 270,62 183538
£ non cash changes in fing (336.66) (7333)
Firatice cost paid 03575 (1.777.40)
Closing halatce 4555352 19,357.89
111 Non-current financial liahilities - Other
Security deposit front accupants 123,94 255.00
Retetition nwney 437 1226
Derivative liability LU09.10 i
1.337.41 20726

Hy

s \g\c\.\'\a!a\,;
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Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
(Al amounts are in INR million unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

12

Tax expense
(a) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax
-for current years * 398.18 441.69
-for carlier years (14.99) 36.20
Total current tax expense 383.19 477.89
Deferred tax
(1) Origination and reversal of temporary differences 25533 113.82
(i) Minimum alternate tax eredit
-for the year - (252.93)
-for carlier years (15.18) -
Deferred tax expense 240.15 (139.11)
623.34 338.78

Tax expense for the year
* Including MAT credit utilization of INR 104.50 million forming part of current tax for the year ended 31 March 2019.

(¢) Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate)

For the year ended For the year ended

PArtieulis 31 March2019 31 March 2018
Profit before tax 1,154.67 2,008.14
Tax using domestic tax rate (Current year 29.12% and previous year 34.608%) 336.24 696.24
Tax effect of:

Effect of non-deductible expense / (Income cxempt [rom income taxes) 226.31 (286.57)
Rate change impact of deferred tax e (107.09)
Tax for carlier ycars (14.99) 36.20
Impact of change in tax rate of subsidiary company 75.78 -
623.34 338.78

Tax expense for the year

(d) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Net balance  Recognised in MAT credit Net balance as at 31 Deferred tax asset Deferred tax
Particulars asat 1 April  profit or loss utilised March 2019 as at 31 March liability as at 31
2018 2019 March 2019
Deferred tax assets (Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment (1,547.84) (258.91) - (1,800.75) B (1,806.75)
Provisions for employee benefits - (0.10) = (0.10) - (0.10)
Equity component of compound financial (4.84) - - (4.84) - (4.84)
instruments
Trade receivables - 6.41 - 6.41 641 -
Borrowings 1.46 (2.73) - (1.27) - (1.27)
MAT credit entitlement 1,400.98 (18.43) (70.88) 1.311.67 1,311.67 “
Tax asscts (Liabilities) (150.24) (273.76) (70.88) (494.88) 1,318.08 (1,812.96)
Net balance  Recognised in MAT credit Net balance as at 31 Deferred tax asset Deferred tax
i as at | April  profit or loss utilised March 2018 ag at 31 March liability as at 31
articulars 2017 2018 March 2018
Deferred tax assets (Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment (1,426.50) (121.34) - (1,547.84) - (1.547.84)
Provisions for employee benefits - = " = - 2
Equity component of compound financial (4.84) - - (4.84) - (4.84)
instruments
Trade receivables - = = s 2 -
Borrowings (6.05) 7.51 - 1.46 2.19 (0.73)
MAT credit entitlement 1.148.04 252.94 - 1,400.98 1,400.98 -
Tax assets (Liabilities) (289.35) 139.11 - (150.24) 1,403.17 (1,553.41)

Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of deferred income
tax assets. The recoverability of deferred tax assets is based on estimates of taxable Income and the period over which deferred income tax asscls will be recovered.

The tax rate uscd for the current year reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 29.12% (previous year 34.608%) payable by corporale entities in India on taxable
profits under the Indian tax law,

Deferred tax asset has not been recognized on temporary differences in relation to indexation benefit of investment in subsidiary and frechold land, if' any, as the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the tempeorary difference and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in foreseeable future,
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. o ' Asat T Asat
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
13 Other now-current liahilities
Deferred ivonie® . 73,62 - 2
i 13,62 7211

xeed wesets
it e hasis

wihe specific requirenient of the customer. The cost of the assels are weluded
R 3047 millions). The defered income would be considered as ievenue on stra

* “The subsiliary company has received reinursenient front its customer for certam assels constructed ¢ acquired
cd teonse (eurent year INR 25 48 millions s previous year

and the reimbursensent hag been disclosed as
aver the kase termwith the eustomier once the assets are fully ¢

!

131 Lang term provisions
Provision for emplayee henefits
(1) Provision for gratuity (Refet e 26)

% ) Pravision for conpensated absences (Refer note 26) R [ R -
At -
14 Current financial linbilities - Trade poyubles
Total dues of mi derprises and small =} 260
Tutal ting diies of creditors oflier s siero enterprises and small enterprises™ = 45223 9123
s N

 hnchules payable to related parties ( refe
= The Ministry of Micro, Small and Med, i
ars Memorandum mumber as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the dis

© Memorandun datcd 26 August 2008 which reconime Micto and Snudl Enterprises should mention i their conespondence
are in respeet of amounts payalile to such enterprises as at year end has been

with their customers the Entiepr
made in dated Tnet AS financial based fom available with the group as ler -
Particulars Avat Arat
31 March 2019 31 March 2014
() the primeipal anwunt renaining unpaid to any supplicr at the end 260
wf fiancial year
(b) the inferest due on principal amount remainng uipaid o any
supplier at the end of fnaneial year
(¢} the amewnt uf inerest paid by the bayer m temss of section 16 0f
N the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmsent Act. 2006
(27 of 2006), alorg with the amount of the payment made o the
<uppliet beyant the appointed day during fipcial year
(d) the anount of interest due and payable for the petiod of delay in
meaking paynient (whic i has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro. Snsall and Mediun Emerprises Develapment Act, 2006
() the amount of imterest averted and remaning umpuid o the end of
2 fancial year
(1) the anwount wf furth remaining due and payalle even i
the suceeeding years, wil such date when the interest dues above are
1 the small emerp for the purpose of disallowinee
e expenditure wnder sectian 23 of the Micro. Small ard
Developrzent Act. 2080
15 Current financial Uabilities - Other
Curtent maturitics of seeured Jong termns borrowings (refer note 1) - 128888
Eniployee related payables 0.39 -
Sceurity depasit fron oecupans 1.591.74
Retention moncy )48
Interest acerved amd ot die on borrowing s 4801
Capital creditors 053]
3,094.42
16 Other current linbilitics
Addvance from customers . pid)
Statutery dues payahle 11661
Deferred icome (refer note 13) 49.85
169.67
16,1 Short term provisions
Provision for employee henefits
(1) Provision for gmtuity (refer note 26)* 0ot
(i) Provision for compensated absences (1efer ie 26) 001 -
0.01
*rounded off

S
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(All amounts in INR million unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2019

}‘{)I'_"I_L)TLA r e;iid

31 March 2018

17 Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Income from operating lease rentals®

Income from maintenanee services

*Asset given on operating lease
Total rental income under non cancell
million (previous year INR 1,566.13 million).

The future minimum lease payments under non-caneellable operating leases are as follows:

Lease rentals recoverable

Not later than one year

Later than one year, not later than five years
Later than five years

Total minimum lease rental recoverable

The revenue recogniz
balances of contract assets and liabilitics.

18 Other Income

(a} Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks
Interest income on inter corporate deposits

(b Others
Interest on income tax refund
Income from scrap sale
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back
Guain on derivative mstruments at fair value through profit or loss
Miscellaneous income
Total other income

19 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus
Ciratuity expenses
Compensated absences

20 Finance Costs

d during the current year is the balancing number for transactions witk

() Interest and finance charges on financial linbilities at amortised cost

Interest paid on term loan

Interest expenses on inter corporate deposits

Interest on non-convertible bonds

Interest on liability component of compound financial instrument
Interest on compulsorily convertible debentures

(b) Others
Interest - advance tax and others
Other borrowing costs

Less: Transferred to investment properties under development (refer note 4)

uble term of operating leases recognised during the year ended 31 March 2019

3,464.00
251929
6,043.29

3,187.08
243132
561840

amounted to INR 1,322.17

1,020,42 1,643.40
1,361.54 2,030.70
2,381.96 3,674.10

19.98
349.70

h customers after adjusting opening and closing

1,659.56

539.41
9.08
250.67

5.27

1,123.25
0.00

9.16

0.01

. w663
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Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

S . ll-';vr]}n;;;;;u&d
31 March 2019

Particulars

* For the year ended
31 March 2018

21 Depreciation expenses
- on property plant and equipment 6.13 4.98
- on investment property 52785 511.32
o 534,08 516.30
22 Other expenses
Property management fees 416.26 366.42
Power and fuel 1,098.03 1.034.62
Repair and maintenancef 490.70 482.33
surance 13.80 16.25
Facility usage fees 35.84 3483
Legal and professional expense 113.40 70.58
Audit fees (refer note a below) 4.35 3.38
Rates and taxes 7298 21.05
Brokerage 30.31 40.01
Lease rent 6.36 5.03
Credit Impaired 2.04 8.64
ssets written off (103 -
social responsibility expenses (refer note (b) below) 41.51 2045
Provision for doubtful debusit# £
Miscellancous expenses e R 1
2,142.70
# pertains to income-generating properties
#t pertains to provision for doubtful debts created on non-recoverability of interest and penally on service tax chargeable on lease rental
receivable from tenants of subsidiary company. Further, the demand from tenants of subsidiary company is on account of non-availability of
Form Al and A2 from tenants as assessed in service tax assessment for year ended 2018-19.
a)  Details of remuneration to auditors
As auditor (on accrual basis, excluding applicabletaxes)
- for statutory audit 3.00
- for other services 0.10
- for reimbursement of expenses b2y
3.38
b)  Details of Corporate social responsibility expenses
Amount required to be spent by the group during the year 41.5] 20.45
Amount spent by the group during the year (in cash)
- Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
41.51 20.45

- On purposes other than above
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(All amounts are in INR million unless otherwisc stated)

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
23. Financial risk management
i. Risk management framework

The group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management framework.
The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the group’s
risk management framework. The committee reports regularly to the board of dircctors on its activities.

The group’s risk management framework are established to identify and analyse the key risks faced by the group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management framework and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the group’s activitics. The group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and

obligations.

The risk management committee oversees compliance with the group’s risk management framework and procedures, and reviews the
adéquacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the group. The risk management committee is assisted in its
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,

the results of which are reported to the group’s board of directors.

The group's financial risk management is carried out by a treasury department (group treasury). The group's treasury identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of the financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

The group’s maximum exposure to credit risk associated with financial assets is equivalent to the carrying value of each class of financial

asset as scparately presented in various financial statement captions.

Credit risk arises on financial assets in the event of debtors, default on the repayment to the group. The group mitigates this risk by

attempting to ensure that adequate security/credit quality is in place.

Credit risk related to accounts receivable arises from the possibility that tenants may be unable to fulfill their lease commitments. The
group mitigates this risk by cnsuring that tenants meet minimum credit quality requirements. The majority of the group’s trade

receivables are collected within reasonable period.
To cater to the credit risk for banks and financial institutions, recognised banks/institutions are accepted.
The Group ensures through appropriate background checks that the office premises are leased to parties of repute and of good credit

standing only. It has also taken refundable interest free security deposits equivalent to 3-6 months of lease rentals from its customers.
Further, management also monitors its receivables on a monthly basis and does not expect any default of its trade receivables.

Movement in loss allowance for trade receivables during the year, which is primarily on account of tax recovery as summarised below:

Year ended Year ended
March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.74 -
[Loss allowance created/ (reversed) during the year 18.35 0.74
19.09 0.74

Balance at the end of the year
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iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another linancial asset. The

group's approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, that it will have sullicient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,

without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation.

‘I'he group’s primary sources of liquidity include cash, undrawn borrowings, construction facilities and cash flow from operating activitics. The group secks to increase income from its existing
propertics by maintaining quality standards for its properties that promote high occupancy rates and support increases in rental rates while reducing tenant turnover and related costs, and by
controlling operating expenses.

Conscquently, the group believes its revenue, along with proceeds from financing activities will continue to provide the neeessary funds to cover its short term liquidity needs. In addition, the
group projects cash Mlows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet liguidity requirement.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude

the impact of netting agreements.

31 March 2019
Contractual cash flows

Carrying amount

INR million Total 0 -1 years 1-5 years Above § years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings
- Term loans (including current maturitics) 14,854.59 20,747.37 1,408.81 14,658.34 4,680.22
= 10.75% Sceured Non Convertible Bonds 21,343.29 27,753.95 2,800.24 24,953.71 -
- Liability component of compound financial instrument 51.29 446.07 55.01 171.09 219.97
- 12% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures to related party 9,294.57 24,378.776 - - 24,378.76

Trade payables 454.83 454.83 454.83

Contractual Liability - & % ~

Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturitics of term loan) 3,184.80 4,299.91 2,880.22 410.59 1,009.10

Carrying amount Contractual cash flows

31 March 2018
Total 0 -1 years 1-5 years Above 5 years

INR million

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings
- Term loans (inchiding current maturitics) 19,256.16 27,510.26 2,943.00 13,063.90 11,503.36

-10.75% Secured Non Convertible Bonds

- Liability component of compound financial instrument 53.72 501.08 55.01 171.09 27498
Trade payables 391.23 391.23 391.23 -
Contractual Liability 30,500.00 30,500.00 30,500.00 - u
Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturitics of term loan) 2,072.80 2,163.11 1,736.52 426.59 -

The group has undrawn borrowing facilitics amounting to INR 23,033.61 million (previous year - INR 170.00 million) with following expiry:

Expiring within

Particulars Total 0-1 years 1-5 years Above § years
As at 31 March 2019 23,033.61 - 23,033.61 &
As at 31 March 2018 170.00 = 170.00

/8 (
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iv. Market risk
Th group is cxposed 1o market risk preliminary relating to the risk of changes in market prices (including lease rentals), such as interest rates that will affect th

group’s expense or the value ol its holdings of [inancial instruments.

v. Currency risk
The group's exposure to foreign currency risk is mainly on account of imports of capital goods, which is not material in proportion Lo the total expenses incurred by

the group.
There are no foreign currency receivable/payable as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018 - Nil).
vi. Interest rate risk

The group is exposed Lo both fair value interest rate risk as well as cash [low interest rate risk arsing both on short-term and long-term floating rate instruments as wel
as on the refinancing of fixed rate instrument. The group's borrowings are principally denominated in Indian Rupees.

The fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in [air values of fixed interest bearing borrowings because of [fluctuations in the interest rates and possible
requirement lo refinance such instruments. Cash [low interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of [loating interest bearing investments will [luctuatc
because ol [luctuations in the interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the group’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Nominal amount in INR million
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 1,112.04 5,027.26
Financial liabilities (9,345.87) (53:72)
(8,233.83) 4,973.54
Variable-rate instruments
Financial assels - -
Financial liabilities (35,679.47) (19,256.16)
(35,679.47) (19,256.16)
Total (43,913.30) (14,282.62)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss (before tax) by INR (75.06)
million (previous year - INR 49.74 million). The amounts includes net off borrowing cost capitalisation of INR 7.28 million (previous year INR Nil million) using

capitalisation rate of respective year,

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss (before tax) by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The amounts shown below are net off borrowing cost capitalisation of INR 31.54 million
(previous year INR 28.87 million) using capitalisalion rate of respective year.

Profit or loss

INR million 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

31 March 2019

Variable-ratc instruments 326.35 (326.35)

Cash flow sensitivity (net) 326.35 (326.35)

31 March 2018

Variable-rate instruments 164.07 (164.07)
164.07 (164.07)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

h.
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24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
i) Financial instruments by category and fair value

The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that arc (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value.

the group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the accounting standard.

As at 31 March 2019 o

Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Trade receivables - - 197.51 - - 197.51
Cash and cash cquivalents - - 055.95 - - 955.95
Loans - - 164.28 - - 164.28
Other financial asscts - - 532.48 = = 532.48
Total financial assets - - 1,850.22 - “ 1,850.22
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 0 - 45,025.33 - - 45,025.33
Tradc payables - - 454.39 - - 454.39
Other financial liabilities 1,009.10 - 2,694.18 - 1,009.10 2,694.18
Contractual Liability - - - = - -
‘Total financial liabilities 1,009.10 - 48,173.90 - 1,009.10 48,173.90

As at 31 March 2018 ]
Fair Value

Carrying Amount
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level3

Financial assets

Trade receivables - - 111.82 - - 111.82
Cash and cash cquivalents - = 432.86 - = 432.86
Loans - - 4,828.87 - - 4.828.87
Other financial asscts “ E 455.05 - - 455.05
‘T'otal financial assets - - 5,828.60 - - 5,828.60
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 18,021.00 - - 18,021.00
“Trade payables : : 391.23 ; . 391,23 |
Other financial liabilitics - - 3,361.68 - - 3,361.68
Contractual Liability - - 30,500.00 = - 30,500.00
Total financial liabilitics - - 52,273.91 - - 52,273.91

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilitics with short term nature are considered to be the same as their fair values, duc to their short-term nature.
The fair values for sceurity deposits and retention money were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They arc classified as level 3 fair values in the fair

value hicrarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.
The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hicrarchy due to the

usc of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

The fair value of derivative liability (component of compulsorily covertible debentures) is determined on the basis of monte carlo simulation method (refer note 33).

The carrying amounts of sccurity deposit given and other financial assets and liabilitics with long term nature are considered to be the same as their fair values.

ii) Measurement of fair values
The different levels of fair value have been defined below:
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices for instance listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price,

Currently, there are no items falling under Level 1 Tair valuation hicrarchy.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that arc not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-thecounter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair valuc an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. Currently, there are no items falling under Level 2 fair valuation hicrarchy.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There have been no valuation under Level 1 and Level 2. Further, there have been no transfers in cither direction for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,

The group’s policy is to recognisc transiers into and trangfers out ol fair value hicrarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
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25. Capital management

The group funding is primarily through debt and secured against property of the group. In addition the group evaluates debt service capabilities
including valuc of assets.
The group sceks to increase income from its existing properties by maintaining quality standards for its properties that promote high occupancy rates

and support increases in rental rates while reducing tenant turnover and related costs, and by controlling operating cxpenscs. Conscquently, the group
believes its revenue, along with proceeds from financing activities will continue to provide the necessary funds to cover its short term liquidity needs.

Amount as at Amount as at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total debt (a) 45,553.52 19,357.89
Equity (b)* (28,253.02) (28,784.35)
Total cquity and net debt (atb) =c 17,300.50 (9,426.46)
263% -205%

Capital gearing ratio (a/c)

As a part of its capital management policy, the group ensures compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to contractual
obligations to the group.
It includes deficit on consolidation adjustment account arising on acquisition of Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited ( refer

note 33).
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26. Employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plan:

The parent company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who arc in continuous
service for a period of 5 years arc eligible lor gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ lermination is the employees last
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years for the service.

i. Gratuity (included in note 19 Employee benefits expense)
1) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of defined benefit obligation

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March, 2019

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year

Present value of DBO at beginning of the year -
0.18

Current service cost

Acquisition adjustment 0.16

Past Service cost "

Interest Cost 0.01

Net actuarial loss recognized in the period (0.01)
0.34

Present value of DBO at the end of the year

2) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligations & fair value of plan assets

As at 31 March, 2019

As at 31 March, 2018

Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.34

Fair value of plan assets

Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 0.34

3) Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March, 2019

For the year ended
31 March, 2018

Components of employer's expense

Currenl service cost 0.18

Past Service cost

Interest Cost 0.01

Net actuarial loss recognized in the period through OCI (0.01)
0.18

Total expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

4) Actuarial assumptions

Eeonomic assumptions

~The discount ratc is based on the prevailing market yiclds of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated

term of the obligations.

“The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant

factors.
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Discounting rate
Salary escalation p.a.
Lixpeeted return on plan assets

Demographic assumptions
Retirement age (years)
Mortality table

Ages

Up to 30 Years
I'rom 31 to 44 ycars
Above 44 years

5) Sensitivity Analysis of defined benefit obligation

As at 31 March, 2019
7.66
8.00 -

NA

As at 31 March, 2018

60.00
[ALM (2006-08) -

Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%)
3.00 -
2.00
1.00 -

a) Impact of change in discount rate

Impact due to Increase  Impact due to Decrease
by 0.5% by 0.5%

Present value obligation at the end of the period

(0.02) 0.02

b) Impact of change in salary increase

Impact due to Increase  Impact due to Decrease
by 0.5% by 0.5%

Present value obligation at the end of the period

6) The parent company cxpects to pay INR 239,385 (previous year -

7) Maturity profile of projected benefit obligation

0.02 (0.02)

INR NIL) in contributions te defined benefit plans in the next year.

Particulars

0-1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years

As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

0.00 0.03 0.31

Other long term employee benefits

During the year ended 31 March, 2019 the parent company has incurred an expense on compensated absences amounting to INR 0.08
million (Previous Year - INR Nil). The parent company determines the expense for compensated absences basis the actuarial valuation of

present value of obligation, using the Prejected Unit Credit method.
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"~ Particulars T Fortheyenr ended  For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
27 Earnings per share
(1) Basic
Profit after tax as reported (INR million) 531.23 1,669.25
Add: Interest on liability component of compound financial instrument
charged to Statement of profit and loss (INR million) 7.89 591
Adjustable net profit after tax (INR million) 539.12 1,674.46
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS S8.510 58,510
Add: Effeet of compound financial instrument which are dilutive from the
date of allotment (in number) 11,615 1,024
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period 0,125 59,534
Basic earnings per share (face value of INR 10) -in INR 7.805.02 28,126.06
(b) Diluted
Adjustable net profit after tax (INR million) 539.12 1,674.46
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS 70,125 59,534
Diluted earnings per share (face value of INR 10)- in INR 7,805.02 28,126.06
As at As at
28  Contingent liability and commitments 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(i) Contingent linbility
(a) Income tax claims, disputed by the group, not acknowledged as debt*#@ 59478 518.61
(b) Bond-cum-Bank guarantee in favor of President of India for Special Economic Zone 121.99 4.20
(¢) Bond cum legal undertaking in favour of President of India for Special Economic Zone 2,224.40 2,224.40
Further, the group has made provisions for certain legal cases filed against / by the group based on best available estimates.
* inclusive of impact due to reduction in refund claimed in I'TR amounting to INR 333.87 million (previous year INR 335.52 million)
@ inclusive of impact due to reduction in MAT Credit in ITR amounting to INR 143.10 million (previous year INR 77.69 million) due to additions made in assessment order.
#inclusive of penalty order amounting to INR 4.52 million (previous year -INR Nil)
Pursuant to recent judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, it was held that basic wages, for the purpose of provident fund, to include special allowances which
are common for all employees. However, there is uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and period from which the same applies. The Group is in process of
estimating the impact of the same on the Group.
Owing to the aforesaid uncertainty and pending clarification from the authoritics in this regard, the Group has not recognised any provision in this regard. Further, management also
believes that the impact of the same on the Group will not be material.
(i1) Capital commitments, net of advances 475.43 213.25

Other commitments
The subsidiary company has an agreement with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by Gurgaon Infospace Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the

subsidiary company. The subsidiary company has developmental rights with respect to the property pursuant to a Joint Development Agreement (JIDA) with GIL entered on 16th November
2006. Under the said agreement the subsidiary company is entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is

entitled to receive balance 28%.

In supplement o carlier IDA, a new co-development agreement was entered into between GIL (the developer) and subsidiary company (the co-developer) on September 17, 2007 under which
of installation of fit-outs & fixtures and the cost of such installation shall be shared by the developer and co-developer in the

the developer and co-developer will jointly carry vut the proc
same ratio as to sharing of gross proceeds i.c. 28% and 72% respectively.
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(i

(if)

Related Party Disclosures
Related parties and nature of the related party relationship.

Desceription of relationship

Name of the party

Ultimate Holding Company

BSREP Holdings Pte Ltd., Singapore

Holding Company

BSREP India Office [Holdings V Pte, Lid.

Fellow subsidiaries

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited fformerly known as Brookfield India
Office Parks Private Limited)

Seaview Developers Private Limited

Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited

BSREP India Office loldings I11 Pte. Lid.

Key management personnel

Mr. Alok Aggarwal ( Director w.e.f 6 August 2015)

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Sharma ( Director w.e.i'5 May 2016)

Mr, Shantanu Chakraberty ¢ Director w.e.f'3 December 2018)

Mr. Subrata Ghosh (Managing Director w.c.f |4 February 2019)

Ms, Deepika Yadav (Women Director w.e.f 14 February 2019)

Mr. Akarsh Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer w.c.f' | February 2019)

Ms Neha Rohilla (Company Secretary w.e.f 19 September 2018 Upto 8

February 2019.
Mr. Neeraj Kapoor (Company Secretary w.e.[” 2 May 2019)

Transactions with related Parties

Nature of transaction/

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Entity's Name

Property management fee

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 315.87 261.75
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 20.34 11.06
Current financial assets- Loans

Inter corporate deposit given, received back

Seaview Developers Private Limited 1,420.56 164.60
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 1,212.65 -
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 1,369.99 100.27
Current financial asscts - Loans

Inter corporate deposit given

Seaview Developers Private Limited “ 270.00
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 80.00 -
Other income

Interest income on inter corporate deposit

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 119.34 155.14
Seaview Developers Private Limited 128.68 152.90
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited 101.68 151.09
Interest on liability component of compound financial instrument

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Lid. 9.08 9.16
BSREP India Office Holdings 11 Pte. Lid. 250.67 -
Dividend paid
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Lid. - 1,521.46
BSREP India Office Holdings I11 Pte. Lid. B 1,174.01
12% compulsorily convertible debentures to related parties issued during the
year

BSREP India Office Holdings 111 Pre. Lud. 10,100.00 -
Liability component of compound financial instrument into equity
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pe, L. 243 2,08
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(i) Outstanding Balances as at year end As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Inter corporate deposit receivable
Shantiniketan Propertics Private Limited - 1,212.65
Seaview Developers Private Limited - 1,420.56
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited # 1,289.99
Interest on inter company deposit receivable
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited - 401.49
Seaview Developers Private Limited - 320.00
Candor Gurgaon One Realty Projects Private Limited - 24,05
Trade payable
Property management fees payable
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 108.43 56.00
Liability component of compound financial instrument
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Lid. 51.29 5372
12% compulsorily convertible debentures to related parties
BSREP India Office Holdings 111 Pte. Ld. 9,294.57 -
Interest acerued and not due on borrowings
BSREP India Office [oldings V Pte. Ltd. 9.78 -
Seeurity deposit receivables - Project management fee
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 10.93 10.93

The transactions with related partics are made on terms equivalent to these that prevail in arm’s Jength transactions. OQutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured

and settlement oceurs in cash,

For the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related partics. This

assessment is undertaken at each reporting period.
(iv) Compensation to key management personncl
Nit P ——— For the year ended For the year ended
pame—— 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Short-term employee benefits 1.20 -
0.33 -

Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benelits
Termination benefits
Share-based payment -
Total compensation to key management personnel 1.53 -
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M Segment reporting

Basis of Segmentation and information about products and services
The group's board of directors has been identificd as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM'), since they are responsible for all mijor decision wort. the preparation and execation of bu
wed i the business of developing snd maintaiming comme werty (FETeS SEZ) in India CODM reviews the entire business i

¢, Herger, negusition

1ess plan, pre;
and aceordingly disclosure

vy new facility. As the group is pimanly o

und expansion of
are not applicable.

requirements of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segmer

m 92 020 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 Since the Taw requires existence of such mformation and
il year and expeets such revords 1 be in cxistonce latest by such
nents, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision

of infi and as required by the tmnsfe pricing legislation under Sec

ablished o comprehensive system of
in e, the group s in the process of updating the docunentation for the specified tra
ions are at the wrm’s length so tht the aforesaid leg

30 The group has cs
! to be
required under faw

d enterprises during the f
lation will not have oy impact on the faneinl st

The management is of the apinion that its specified i

| by

lion) agatinst certain inter corporate deposits giv

ier years, the munagement has recalied

mount of INR 2, 160,00 million (previous year INR 2, 100,00 prillion) and lnterest acented but not received of INR 248,19 million (previe ar INR 24819
s were expited and the amount was due for the repayment by them on demand. Due to long outstanding and expicy of comractual arsngenent, during the
sy on collection of these halances exist, therefore munagement bus mude the provision aguinst these inter corporite deposits and interest receivable thereon in earlier years, During the
e subsidiary compiny INR 1,71 2,40 million. Out of the amount awarded, during the previous year, the subsidiary company has recetved INR 43.4 nullion and henee provision has been
| against the subsidiary company . The subsidiary company 15 evaluating further legal course of iction,

A2 Provision against doubtful i
the subsidiary company during
these balanees and continuouw
previous year, as o result of lingation proceeding:
written back. Further, for the remaining balance of INR 679.19 million the |

. The said agreens

ie, Since un

lowing up to recover t

warded

. the wrbitrator e

tion procecdings were dise

1 Twa Developers & Projeets Private Limited from BSRER India Office Holdings 11 Pre Lid. an o purchase consideration of INR 30,500 million by

33 Biffective & January 2019, the Compiny acquired 99.99% of issued and paid up equty share capital of Candor G

wary of the below :

ituting approximately 66.89% of issued and piasd up capital of Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited; and

HEeN Cons

9,004 equity

5,535 unseeured unlisted Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs™) huving face value of INR 22180740 cach regating up to INR 10,100 million to the Subseriber for acquirmg 19, cquity
shiares constituting approximately 33,119 of issued and paid up capital of Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Privite Limited (refer sote 34)
Pursuant to the acquisition, Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Linnted has beeor ubsidiary of the company.
As per the requirements of Appendix C of Ind AS 103, being & common control business eombination, prior periods figures have been prepured as ifthe business combination had oceurred from the beginning of the preceding year Le | April 2007,
Sunmary of assets and Labilities acquired as a result of the above mentioned acquisition 15 as given below:
B R Amont Amount —
A) Asset acquived on 1 April 2017
Propetty, plant und equipment 36,79
9,541.86
Loans 0095
Other fimmenl assets 89.97
Inconie tix assets (net) 506,38
Other non-current assels 2134
Current Financial as:
“Tratde receivables 3471
Cush und cash equivalens 1,095.21
Lol
52371

Other fimmncii
Other current assels
Sub-total (A)

B) Liubilities assumed on 1 April 2017

Other Equity
(1) Retamed carnings 1,198.72
(11) Secunties premaim I88.78
i) Others J | X1 1387.56
Non-current labilities
Finaucial liubilitics
Bormowings 11,148.61
Other fi liabilities o 528,70 11.671.37
23712

1)
ties 122.73

Deferred tax liabilities (1

Other non-current

Cuerent fin | linbilitics
ade puyables 250.07
Other financial labilites

Other current inabilities
~total (B)

Net assets acquired H{A)(BY]
Less: Contractual Liab

-CCDs 1o be issued
Net assets acguired tr 1 to deficit on idati i

account

ments cuncelled 15

oup, Accordingly carrying value of in
consideration as nentioned above,

neelled in the books of the
cttled through purch

on Two Developers & Projects Privine Limited held by the comp:
on | April 2017, Subsequently, cont

es of Candor Gur
1 liability of the

“The value of the investments of INR 30,500 million in the cquity s
debuted to deficit on consolidation adjustnient account and contractua

e amount has been ereated

sidiary company with an appointed date of
hi on 6 February 2019 for which final approval

o 66 and Section 52 of the Companics Act 2013 proposed the merger of the company wi
fan Companies Law imatters) New Del

the year ended 31 Murch 2019, the Board of Directors of the group have pursuant to Sections 230 - 232 read wi
ary 2019, Aceordin b (scheme of arrangenent) to that effeet has been filed with the National Company Law Tribunal (NCL'T approval authority wicler T

35 Net dividend remitted in foveign covveney S
For the year ending

3 March 2019

No. of shares

Particulars —
S ol ; ) | INR million
: - 58,5 o ) 152146

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pre. Lud.
HSREP India Office i

0.05
- 00s

e - 0,
- T ons|
- 0.05
; 005
F 2,695.74

Cayman Js|
Cayr

i rounded off
*Ilolding company of Candor Gurgaon Twe Developers & Projects Privine Limited till 07 Jamaary 2019,
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Candor Kolkata One
(AL amounts are i INR million o

Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

v years, the parent company
| (net of'INR 38,00 millio

36 During the car
recognised INR

entered into one time setlement(s) t erminate opers
which relates to prior periods and the same has been adjusted in the retained o

ces for whi
ug

st these b

aiid project

alances in the financial year nding 31 )

A7 The parent company had in carlier yei o eertinn capital/ mobilization
seccived fom the counter pasty, therefire the munagenent has made the provision
38 Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of consolidated financinl statements

Nanie of the entity in the group

Paremt Campany
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Teeh Stroctures Private Limis
3st Mareh 2009
st March 2018

Subsickiary Conpany

Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited
st March 2019

st March 2018

Total
31st March 2009
35t Murch 2018

Less: Now controlling interest in subsidiery company
315t March 2019
st March 2018

Grand Total
Jlst March 2019
st March 2008

Net assets (total ass

ch 2015 INR 171 million, Thes:
ol 2005, Duaring the earlier years, the purent compa

servives with various partics. As per the terns;

wings as ar | April 2005) as one time settlement charges for the cancellation of contract in the previous year,

of the

). the pas

el

rent company hid

dvances have been outstanding for long-period of time with marginal ndjustments against running bills
y hud written off INR 10064 million,

As Yo of
eonsalidated net
assets

107.06%
104.04%

1 I0%
-4 06%

4y
99.99%

(28.780.82)

isive Income

Sharc in total comprehensive Income

Amount*

ets minus total liabilitics) Share in profit or (loss) Share in Other eomprel
Amount A%l Amount A% % of consalidated
consalidated profit ather comprehensive
or lass Income*
(30,247 1) 563 (299.13) 100.00%
(29948101 s9406 i
2.006.08 157.84% 35.66
116740 4.58% 107805
(2824115 101.54% 530.53
[28.780.70) 100 22% L7301
©.2n (.09
©.12) i
(28.241.36) 539.44
1.672.90

100 00%
0.00%

0ol

ol

As % of
consolidated total
comprehensive
incime

-56.30%

35 64%

15T 84%
64.58%

101 55%
100,22%

Amount

29211
9490

BI8.66
107805

539.54
1.673.01

(0.09)
w11

53945
1.672.90

*rouncled off.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered sleconniants
Firm wion Nos 101248 W W- 100022
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